
          

 

 

MEADOW PINES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

BROWARD COUNTY 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 15, 2023 
9:30 A.M. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165 Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 

www.meadowpinescdd.org 
786.347.2700 ext. 2027 Telephone 

877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Cobblestone Clubhouse 
14701 SW 10th Street 

Pembroke Pines, FL 33027 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

February 15, 2023 
9:30 a.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Declaring Vacancies (Seats 1, 3, and 5)............………………….Page 2 

E. Discussion Regarding Vacancies in Seats 1, 3, and 5 and Appointment to Fill Vacancies 

F. Administer Oath of Office and Review New Board Member Duties and Responsibilities 

G. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

H. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda  

I. Approval of Minutes 

1. November 17, 2022 Regular Board Meeting………………………………………………………..Page 4 

J. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding South Florida Water Management District (SFWD) Compliance 

K. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Stormwater System Cleaning 

2. Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure……………………………………………Page 7 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget....……..Page 9 

L. Administrative Matters 

1. Staff Report, as Required 

M. Board Members Comments 

N. Adjourn 



MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTICE OF SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Meadow Pines 

Community Development District (the “District”) will hold a Special Board Meeting (the 

“Meeting”) at 9:30 a.m. on February 15, 2023, in the Cobblestone Clubhouse located at 14701 

SW 10th Street, Pembroke Pines, Florida 33027.  

 
The purpose of the Meeting is to discuss the District Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget 

and to conduct any other District business which may lawfully and properly come before the 

Board. A copy of the Agenda for this Meeting may be obtained from the District’s website or by 

contacting the District Manager at nnguyen@sdsinc.org and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 five 

(5) days prior to the date of the meeting. 

 
Meetings are open to the public and are conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida 

law for community development districts. This Meeting may be continued as found necessary to 

a date, time and place specified on the record. Also, there may be occasions when Staff and/or 

Board members may participate by speaker telephone. 

 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this 

meeting, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to 

ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which 

record includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 

special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at this Meeting should contact the 

District Manager at nnguyen@sdsinc.org and/or 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior to 

the date of this particular meeting. 

 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 

 
MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.meadowpinescdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  BROWARD DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW   02/06/23 
 

Page 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
DECLARING VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 190.006(3)(b), FLORIDA STATUTES; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 190.006, Florida Statutes, the 

members of the Board of Supervisors (the “District Board”) of the Meadow Pines Community 

Development District (the “District”) are to be elected by the qualified electors of the District at 

a general election to be held on November 8, 2022 (the “General Election”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District provided published notice of the qualifying period for election 

to the District Board at least two (2) weeks prior to the start of the qualifying period for the 

General Election, as required by Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Broward County Supervisor of Elections has confirmed that at the 

close of the qualifying period for election to the District Board, no elector qualified for Seats #1, 

#3, and #5 to be filled in the General Election; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes, the District is required 

to declare the seats to be filled by the election to which no qualified elector has qualified as 

vacant and to appoint a qualified elector to fill each such vacancy within 90 days of the second 

Tuesday following the General Election. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
THAT: 

  
1. The recitals above are true and correct and are hereby made a part of this Resolution.  
 
2. The District Board hereby declares Seats #1, #3, and #5 to be vacant, effective on the 

second Tuesday following the General Election.  

 
3. The District Board shall appoint a qualified elector to Seats #1, #3, and #5 within 90 

days of the second Tuesday following the General Election, as required by Section 

Page 2



190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes.  Until such appointment, the incumbent board member 

in such seat shall remain in office. 

 
4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and adoption.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of February, 2023 by the Board of Supervisors of the 

Meadow Pines Community Development District. 

 
 
ATTEST: MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chair / Vice Chair 
  

Page 3



1 of 4 
 

MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 17, 2022 
 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Nancy Nguyen called the November 17, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Meadow 
Pines Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 9:33 a.m. in the Cobblestone 
Clubhouse located at 14701 SW 10th Street, Pembroke Pines, Florida 33027. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the 
Broward Daily Business Review on October 12, 2022, and as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Ms. Nguyen determined that the attendance of Chairman Douglas Harrison, Vice Chairman Leon Brown 
and Supervisor Jennifer Marmanillo constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the 
meeting. 
 
Staff members in attendance were: District Manager Nancy Nguyen of Special District Services, Inc.; 
General Counsel Gregory George of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A., and Paola 
Velandia of Miami Management, Inc. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  July 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing 
 
Ms. Nguyen presented the minutes of the July 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing and 
asked if there were any corrections and/or revisions. There being none, a motion was made by Mr. 
Harrison, seconded by Ms. Marmanillo and passed unanimously approving the minutes of the July 20, 
2022, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 

1.  Discussion Regarding South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) 
Compliance 

 
Ms. Nguyen explained that the July 26, 2022 inspection with SFWMD was conducted, as scheduled. 
She further explained that during that inspection, SFWMD noted that the wetland preservation area was 
still out of compliance. As Eco Blue was unable to attend the inspection, Ms. Nguyen stated that District 

Page 4



2 of 4 
 

Staff marked the exotic species so that there is no misunderstanding as to what the contractor needs to 
address. Ms. Nguyen further explained that she requested an extension from SFWMD to comply with 
the requirements, which request was granted and was to expire on November 1, 2022.  
 
Ms. Nguyen and Ms. Paola Velandia, the Manager for Cobblestone Community Association (the 
“Association”) contacted Eco Blue to have them mitigate the exotic species. On September 21, 2022, 
Eco Blue reported that the wetland preservation exotic species were removed and an inspection with 
SFWMD will be scheduled by them. The inspection was scheduled for October 6, 2022. This inspection 
also concluded that the wetland preservation was still out of compliance. Eco Blue was informed and 
they stated that they will be addressing the issues and will inform Ms. Nguyen when the areas are ready 
for an inspection. Ms. Nguyen advised that she requested another extension from SFWMD to comply 
with the requirements, which request was granted and will expire on December 30, 2022. Another 
inspection was scheduled with SFWMD for November 18, 2022. Following this inspection, Ms. Nguyen 
was informed by SFWMD that they will be reporting the wetland preservation to be in compliance; 
however, there are still some issue that must be addressed. 
 
Ms. Nguyen reminded the Board that although the District owns the wetland preservation, there is a 
Maintenance Agreement in place between the District and the Association, where the Association is 
responsible for the expenses associated with the maintenance of the wetland preservation. Due to the 
issues that occurred with the SFWMD inspections, Mses. Nguyen and Velandia requested a proposal 
from Allstate Resource Management for the monthly maintenance of the wetland preservation. A 
discussion ensued and Ms. Nguyen recommended that the Association consider Allstate’s proposal. The 
Board and Ms. Velandia agreed.  
 
Ms. Velandia will be presenting Allstate’s proposal to the Association Board of Directors and will inform 
Ms. Nguyen of their decision. More information on this item will be provided at a future meeting.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget 
 

Ms. Nguyen presented Resolution No. 2022-04, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE MEADOW 
PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 BUDGET 
(“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Nguyen provided an explanation for the document. She indicated that there was an operating fund balance of 
approximately $19,000 at the end of the fiscal year. Ms. Nguyen reminded the Board that the assessments were increased for 
fiscal year 2022/2023; therefore, the District should be able to cover the District’s expenses without needing to use the 
approximate $19,000. A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Harrison, seconded by Ms. Marmanillo and unanimously passed to adopt Resolution No. 2022-
04, as presented, thereby setting the amended/revised budget for the 2021/2022 fiscal year. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

1. District Election and Procedure for Declaring Vacancies Effective November 22nd (Seats 
1, 3, and 5) 

Page 5



3 of 4 
 

Ms. Nguyen advised that no electors qualified for Seats 1 (Douglas Harrison), Seat 3 (Leon Brown), and 
Seat 5 (VACANT); therefore, vacancies will be declared in these seats effective the second Tuesday 
following the general election (November 22, 2022). Ms. Nguyen further explained that the incumbents 
in these seats shall remain on the Board as holdovers until the Board appoints a qualified elector to serve 
in such seats.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member comments at this time.  
 
Ms. Nguyen stated that unless an emergency were to arise, the Board would not need to meet until 
February 16, 2023. Mr. Brown stated that he has a conflict and will not be available to attend. The Board 
directed Ms. Nguyen to advertise for a Special Meeting to be held on February 15, 2023 at 9:30 a.m. in 
the Cobblestone Clubhouse located at 14701 SW 10th Street, Pembroke Pines, Florida 33027. Ms. 
Nguyen acknowledged the Board’s request.  
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Harrison, seconded 
by Mr. Brown and unanimously passed adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 9:58 a.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Meadow Pines Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE MEADOW PINES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for April 20, 2023 at 9:30 a.m. in the 
Cobblestone Clubhouse, 14701 SW 10th Street, Pembroke Pines, FL 33027, for the purpose of 
receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 15th day of February, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: MEADOW PINES 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 

Page 9



   Meadow Pines
  Community Development District

  Proposed Budget For
   Fiscal Year 2023/2024

     October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15


	Meadow Pines Community Development District - February 15, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Declaring Vacancies (Seats 1, 3, and 5)
	November 17, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget




